Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unl otherwise stated

Note As at As at
Fartculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital 3 1,043.65 1,043.65
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 14,653.15 12,097.76
Minority Interest 3,254.59 488.58
Non-current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings 5 6,752.43 1,741.07
(b) Deffered Tax Liabilities (net) 12 -

(c) Other non current liabilities 6 168.51 62.95
{d} Long-term Provisions 8 355.45 136.22
Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 5 28,981.10 15,761.30
(b) Trade pavyables 7

(i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 184,23 56.34
(ii}) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises 20;751:54 11,402.00
(c) Other current liabilities 6 2,104.16 1,317.60
(d) Short-term provisions 8 133.08 327.23
TOTAL 78,381.89 44,434.70
II. ASSETs
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(i}  Property, Plant and Equipment 9 6,513.91 4,098.34
(i) Intangible assets 10 696.81 847.18
(iii) Capital work-in-progress g9 2,957.40 1,288.12
(iv) Intangible assets under development 10 1,099.59 363.32
(b)  Goodwill 1,742.04 447.80
(c) Naon current investments 11 36.70 28.80
(d) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12 325.62 89.92
(e) Long-term loans and advances 13 550.76 5.55
(f)  Other non current assets 14 5,114.42 5,086.63
Current assets
(a) Current Investments 11 1,900.00 -
(b) Inventories 15 40.72 -
(c) Trade receivables 16 32,682.51 15,524.83
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 17 7,015.10 5,480.39
(e) Short-term loans and advances 18 702.03 418.78
(f)  Other current assets 14 17,004.28 10,755.04
TOTAL 78,381.89 44,434.70
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the
All amounts are in INR lacs uni

otherwise stated

year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended Year ended
raniculses Nots March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. Revenue from operations 19 1,28,911.01 1,48,468.48
II. Other income 20 2,585.08 1,197.19
III. Total Revenue (I + II) 1,31,496.09 1,49,665.67
IV. Expenses:
Cost of services rendered 21 1,13,725.85 1,31,660.10
Purchases of stock in trade 22 1.93 -
Changes in inventories of stock in trade 23 0.10 -
Employee benefits expense 24 6,676.15 6,108.17
Finance costs 25 1,820.77 1,121.68
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 1,160.70 673.32
Other Expense 27 3,877.67 4,370.18
Total expenses 1,27,263.17 1,43,933.45
V. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (III-IV) 4,232.92 5,732.22
VI. Extraordinary Items - =
VII. Share of Net Profit of Associate (Net of tax) 7.90 7.91
VIII. Profit before tax (V- VI) 4,240.82 5,740.13
IX. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 1,350.55 1,642.56
(2) Deferred tax (154.43) 35.20
(3) Adjustment of tax related to prior years 10.18 4.51
Total Tax Expense 1,206.30 1,682.27
X. Profit After Tax (VII - VIII) 3,034.52 4!057.86
Profit for the year attributable to:
- Equity holders of the Parent 2,736.93 3,770.48
- Minority Interest 297.59 287.38
XI. Earnings per equity share (face value of INR 10 each) 30
Basic (in INR) 26.22 36.13
Diluted (in INR) 26.22 36.13
The above cc lidated stat t of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Consolidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Al Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit before extra ordinary items & tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Interest Income
Dividend Income
Net gain on foreign exchange Auctuation
Issue of Sweat Equity Shares
Profit on sale of Property, plant and eguipment
Parperty, plant and equipment writtan off
Net gain on sale of investment In mutual funds
Net gain on sale of investment in subsidiaries
Share of profit from associates
Interest Expenses
Trade and other balances written off
Sundry Balance written off
Llabilities written back
Lease equalisation reserve
Prior Pertod adjustments
Provigion for Doubtful Debts
Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / Decrease In Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
Increase [ (Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) In other Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions

Cash generated from operations
Net income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Year ended
March 31, 2023

4,240.82 5,740.13
1,160.70 673.32
(1,433.08) (722.20)

(84.56) (237.46)
(19.48) (0.21)
16.21 :
(7.95) %
(511,89) b
(7.90) (7.91)
1,797.52 1,114.40
61.18 7.93
(327.83) (200.68)
14,17 21.96
- 1.84
25.06 96.58
493297 6,487.70
(14,434,98) 10,060.20
177.19 (1,815,35)
0.10
8,614.37 (6,480,10)
108.87 325.29
(55.58) 74,01
(667.06) 8,651.75
(935.68) (1,753.36)
A (1,602.74) 6,898.39

(5,675.67)
58.88

(3,277.83)
10.75

Furchase of investment in mutual funds (2,650.00) -
Proceeds from sale of Investment In mutual funds 757.95 -
Gaodwilll (1,294.24) -
Adjustment on account of acquisition/ in subsidiary
eompanies from minority interest (Sa28a) -
Proceeds from sale of investment in subsidiaries 1,011.89 -
Investment in bank deposits (4,761.52) (4,923.31)
Loans and Advances {230.89) 4.87
Interest Income 990,76 544,35
Net cash used for investing activities B (12,435.68) (7,641.17)
c. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares - 318.63
Proceeds from Issue of shares to Minority sharehalders (et of dividend paid) 100.85 (57.34)
Proceeds from borrowings 19,314.67 2,678,314
Repayment of borrowings (1,945.53) (1,516.31)
Share issue expense (3.99) (3.75)
Interest pald (1,797.52) (1,114.40)
Dividend paid {150.00% {1,160.00
Net cash generated from financing activities C 15,518.49 (n!q.nai
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash or cash equivalants A+B+C 1,480.07 (1,597.61)
Net Foreign exchange difference (27.55) 67.84
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,562.58 7,010.16
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7,013& 5,480.39
Components of Cash & cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-Current Account 1,245.49 2,280.50
~Overdraft facility 1,096.27 556.81
Cash in hand (Including Imprast) 60.71 47.38
Deposit with bank with original maturity of less than 3 manths 4,612.63 2,595.70
7,015.10 5,480.39
_—— —— %0039
The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in c ion with acc ing notes.
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666
Notes forming part of the consolidated fina ncial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

1,

2.1

2.2

(a)

(b)

(<)

Corporate Information

Skyways Air Services Private Limited “the company” was incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 on December
21, 1984. The registered office of the Company is located at RZ 128-129A, Mahipalpur Extension, NH-8, New Delhi-110037,
India.

The group is engaged in providing integrated logistics solutions other specialised logistics services and logistics operations.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on September 28, 2024,

Basis of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") as applicable. These
consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR lacs except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint venture

The investment in subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture are carried at cost, The group regardless of the nature of its
involvement with an entity (the investee), determines whether itis a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee.
The group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investes
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The group considers investment in an entity as an associate when, the group has significant influence., Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The group considers investment in an entity as a joint venture whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture, Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions abaut the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over the subsidiaries.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and
similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost
of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are reguired to be
replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recagnised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

The group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost
which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining

asset,




Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

(d)

(e)

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at, based
on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful
lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The group has used the rates
prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, which interalia are based on the estimated useful life of the
assets. The group has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment

Useful lives estimated by the management (years) as per Schedule II of Companies act, 2013

1. Furniture and Fixture 10-15 years
2. Office Equipment 5-15 years
3. Electrical Equipment 10-15 years
4, Computers 3-6 years

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(b) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets internally generated are measured at the cost that can be directly attributed, or allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis. Following initial recagnition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired,

Intangible assets are amortized on a written down value basis over the useful life of the as under-
Computer software 6 years

Leases

Where the group is a lessee:

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, if the lease agreement contains a specific lock-in-period otherwise expense is
recognised as per lease terms,

Where the group is a lessor:

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
arising is accounted for on a straightline basis over the lease terms.

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recaverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of maeney and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used,

Impairment losses, including impairment on Inventaries, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After
impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.




Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

(f)

(g)

(h)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the group estimates the asset's or cash-
generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
priar years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

Investments
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties,

Current investments are carried in the consolidated financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made
to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments,

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Profit/loss on sale of current investments is computed with reference to their average cost,

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can
be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rendering of services

Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of
contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of
variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation, The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts offered by the group as part of the contract.

Interest income
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised on actual receipt.

Rental Income
Rental income arising from sub-leasing is accounted for on a straight - line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss due to its non-operating nature.

Retirement and other employee Benefits
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity Fund and Compensated Absences.

fin T i lan
The group's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution
plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are
rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value
of scheme assets.




Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTCO19666
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

(i)

(i)

(k)

Short-term emplovee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance
incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of
future compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

-term loye nefi
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at
the balance sheet date on the basis of acturial valuation.

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).The cost of equity-settied
transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity share capital and securities premium reserves in
equity. The expense in the statement of profit and lass is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary
itemns, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

Exchange differences
The group accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency monetary items as
income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the
tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reparting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income originating
during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates
and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry
forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence
that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The group writes-down the carrying
amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down
is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same




Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTCO019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

n

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes (if any)) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions & Contingencies

A provision is recognized when the group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the group or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow staterment comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Current and non current classification
Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification,
An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation/settlement in cash and

cash equivalents. The group have identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets
and liabilities,




Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTCO19666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3 Share capital

Authorised
6,50,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/ each 6,500.00 1,500.00
(Previous year 1,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each)

Issued Subscribed & Paid up
1,04,36,480 Equity Shares of INR 10/ each 1,043.65 1,043.65
(Previous year 1,04,36,480 equity shares of INR 10/- each)

Total issued, subscribed & fully Paid up Share capital 1,043.65 1,043.65

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting Period :

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of shares  Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the Period 1,04,36,480 1,043.65 21,87,500 218,75
Shares Issued during the year - u 82,48,980 824.90
Shares bought back during the year - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,04,36,480 1,043.65 1,04,36,480 1,043.65

b. Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares ;

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

c. Details of Shareholders holding more then 5% share in the Company :

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
MName of Shareholder No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Yashpal Sharma 54,34 ,560 52.07% 54,34,560 52.07%
Tarun Sharma 41,65,440 39.91% 41,65,440 39.91%
d. Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year :
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- —— % Change No. Of % of total % Change during
0. o Of tota during the Shares shares the year

Name of Shareholder Shares shares ve:r Y
Yashpal Sharma 54,34,560 52.07% 46.87% 5,43,456 5.21% (2.27%)
Tarun Sharma 41,65,440 39.91% 35.92% 4,16,544 3.99% (1.74%)

e. Increase in authorised share capital
During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has increased its authorised share capital by INR 5,000.00 lacs consist of 5,00,00,000 equity shares of
INR 10/- each vide shareholders' approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on August 25, 2023.

During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has in aggregate increased its authorised Equity Share Capital by INR 500.00 lacs consist of
5,00,000 equity shares of INR 100/- each. 15,000 equity shares vide Shareholders’ approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on December
16,2022, further increased by 4,85,000 equity shares on March 20, 2023.

f. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has split its equity share capital from Face value of INR 100 per share to face value of INR 10 per
share vide shareholders' approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on June 26, 2023.

g. During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, the company has alloted 7,81,250 equity shares of INR 100/- each as fully paid bonus shares vide
sharehoelder's approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on July 14, 2022,

h. During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, the company has in aggregate alloted 43,648 equity shares of INR 100/~ each towards sweat equity
shares. 10,500 equity shares vide Shareholder's approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on December 16, 2022 and 33,148 equity shares vide
Shareholder's approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on March 20, 2023.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Reserve and surplus

Securities Premium (see note 4.1)

General reserve (see note 4.2)

Retained earnings (see note 4.3)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (see note 4.4)
Statutory Reserve (see note 4.5)

Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition on account of issue of shares

Balance at the end of the year

General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Issue of Bonus Shares

Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Profit / (loss) for the year
Interim Dividend paid on equity shares
Share Issue Expenses
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
Prior Period adjustments

Balance at the end of the year
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition/(deletion) during the year
Balance at the end of the year
Statutory Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

Balance at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

534.42
135.88
13,908.50
56.22
18.13

534.42
135.88
11,333.77
83.77
9.92

14,653.15

12,097.76

534.42 259.44
- 274.98
534.42 534.42
135.88 917.13
- (781.25)
135.88 135.88
11,333.77 8,732.43
2,736.93 3,770.48
(150.00) (1,160.00)
(3.99) (3.75)
(8.21) (7.23)
. 1.84
13,908.50 11,333.77
83.77 15.93
(27.55) 67.84
56.22 83.77
9.92 2.69
8.21 7.23
18.13 9.92_
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5

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings
Long term
Vehicle loan (see note (a) below) 1,746.18 1,252.50
Term Loan 7,209.41 1,133.91
Less: Current maturities of Vehicle Loan (413.98) (462.12)
Less: Current maturities of Term Loan (1,789.18) (183.22)
6,752.43 1,741.07
D e AP
Short term
Secured
Current maturities of Vehicle loan 413.98 462.12
Current maturities of Term loan 1,789.18 183.22
Working capital demand loans (see note (b) below) 18,681.30 14,118.32
Overdraft facility from bank (sce note (c) below) 8,014.73 951.80
Unsecured
Loan from directors 79.91 43.84
Loan from Others 2.00 2.00
28,981.10 15,761.30
e T LC L —_—— I o
Note: i

a. Secured by Hypathecation of respective Vehicles and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over the tenure of loans
of 48 months to 60 months carries interest rate of 7.00% to 12.05%.

b. The Group has obtained Term Loan amounting to INR 11,198.20 lacs from Bajaj Finance Limited, Oxyzo Financial Services
Private Limited, Tata Capital Financial Services Limited,Tata Capital Limited, Standar Chartered Bank and ICICI Bank and
carrying interest rate in the range of 9.00% to 12.50% against which INR 7,209.41 lacs and INR 1,143.16 lacs is outstanding
as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively. These term loans are secured by:-
For Bajaj Finance Limited

(1) exclusive charge on current assets of one of the subsidiary company I.e., Rahat Continental Private Limited with
minimum cover of 1.25x.

(ii) Pledge on entire shareholding of Rahat Continental Private Limited.

(ii) Personal guarantee of promoters namely Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma
For Oxyzo Financial Services Priv. Limited

(i) Cash collateral of INR 400.00 lacs in favour of Oxyzo Financial services Private Limited.

For Tata Capital Financial Services Limited

(i) Exclusive lien on Mutual funds held by the group.
For Tata Capital Limited ("TCL")

(i) First and exclusive charge by way of mortage over the Land & Building of Plot no. 239, Okhla Indutrial Area Phase I,
Okhla, Delhi, India, owned by one of the subsidiary companies i.e., Forin Container Line Private Limited ("FCLPL") (which has
been already been mortgaged to TCL for the facilities sanctioned by TCL to FCLPL.

(if) Personal guarantee of promoters namely Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma

(iii) Also Secured with the corporate guarantee of holding company.

For Ba

(i) Exclusive charge by way of Mortgage over the Land & Building of Plot no 239, Okhla Industrial Area Phase-I, Okhla,
Delhi, India, 110020.

(i) First pari-pasu charge over current assets of the company, both present and future.

(iii) Exclusive charge over fixed deposits of M/s Skyways Air Services Private Limited (Holding Company).

(iv) Personal guarantee of promoters namely Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yash Pal Sharma and Mr, Tarun Sharma.

For Standard Chartered Bank

(i) Exclusive charge over current assets of the company, both present and future.
(ii) Equitable Mortgage of property situated at W-B6(GF), greater kailash Part-II, New Delhi-110048 owned by Mr. Yashpal
Sharma and Mrs. Bharti Sharma.




Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

c. The group has been sanctioned a total working capital and overdraft limit amounting to INR 38,028.30 lacs from Bajaj
Finance Ltd., Axis Bank, HDFC Bank, Indusind Bank, Canara Bank, Kotak Bank, ICICI Bank, IDFC , SCB, Citi, SBM and Yes
Bank, carrying interest rate linked to interest rate indice for overdraft facility and WCDL (to be mutually agreed at the time of
disbursement) against which INR 26,696.03 lacs and INR 15,070.12 lacs is outstanding as at March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023 respectively. These facilities are secured by:-
(1) exclusive charge on Fixed Deposit Receipts of the company.
(i) pari-passu charge on entire present and future current assets of the company except Bajaj Finnace Limited.
(iii) Pari-passu chargeon residential properties in the name of Bharti Sharma and Sudershan Lal Sharma between
SCB and IDFC.
(iv) Also secured with the Personal guarantee of the Directors namely Sudershan Lal Sharma, Yashpal Sharma and
Tarun Sharma.
(v) Cash collateral to the tune of 35% in the form of FDRs along with interest, kept with bank under lien,

(vi) Also Secured with the corporate guarantee of holding company.

d. Borrowings from directors are interest free and repayable on demand.
e. The Group has not defaulted on repayment of borrowings and interest during the year.
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CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6 Other liabilities
Non Current
Advance from employees under Employee Stack Purchase Scheme 92.90 -
(See note (a) below) '
Security deposit from customers 39.89 41.07
Lease equalisation reserve 35.72 21.88
168.51 62.95
Current =2
Statutory Dues 611.85 633.64
Lease equalisation reserve 0.41 0.08
Salary and bonus Payable 533.25 407.90
Pavable for Property, plant and equipment 28.84
Security deposit from customers 13.54 -
Advance from customers 194.37 -
Advance against sale of investment in subsidiaries 500.00 .
Other current liahilities 221.90 275.98
2,104.16 1,317.60
Note:

a. During the year the holding company has announced an Employee Share Purchase Scheme (ESPS) by the name of "MySky", in which the
eligible employees in the group can subscribe to the equity shares of the holding company at fair market value determined at the time of
allotment of such shares.

7 Trade payables

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

x 184,23 56.34
(i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (see note below)
(i} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 20,751.54 11,402.00
20,935.77 11,458.34

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for
the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the group,

(1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount 184.23 56.34
- Interest thereon = -
(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each = -
accounting vear

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest & i
specified under this Act

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditor.
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7.1 Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled  Payables Not Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Dues Due payment
Less than 1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 years  Total
years
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises - 180.22 4.01 - 184.23

(i) Disputed dues - Micro and - - - - 5 = -
Small Enterprises

(iii) Others 1,962.14 16,983.54 1,739.15 39.35 25.68 1.68 20,751.54
(iv)Disputed  dues - = = - - - -
Others

Total 1,962.14 17,163.76 1,743.16__ 39.35 25.68 1.68 20,935.77

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Unbilled Payables Not Outstanding for following periods from due date of
Dues Due payment

Less than 1 1-2 2-3 years More than 3 years  Total

year years
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises - 44.74 11.60 - - - 56.34
(ii) Disputed dues - Micro and - - - - - -
Small Enterprises
(iil) Others 22.40 10,509.97 831.24 20.05 12.12 6.22 11,402.00
(iv)Disputed  dues - * : = . % ‘ *
Others
Total 22.40 10,554.71 842.84 20.05 12,12 6.22 11,458.34

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
8 Provisions

Non Current
Provision for employee benefits

Provision For Gratuity (refer note 31) 355.45 136.22
35;.45 136.22
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision For Gratuity (refer note 31) 36.37 25.66
Provision For Leave Encashment 18.62 10.00
Other
Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax) 78.09 201.57
133.08 327.23

j
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

10

10.1

Intangible Assets

As at

As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1. There are no projects as Intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2024 whose completion is overdue or cost of which has exceeded

in comparison to its original plan.

Trade Mark 0.88 1.24
Computer Software 695.93 845.94
696.81 847.18
Intangible Asset under development 1,089.59 363.32
1,099.53 363.32
Trade Mark Computer Total Intangible Asset
Software under
development
Gross book value
Balance as at April 01, 2022 4.56 709.70 714.26 -
Additions - 668.90 G68.90 363.32
Disposals / adjustments - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4.56 1,378.60 1,383.16 363.32
Additions - 220.48 220.48 736.27
Disposals / adjustments = (64.20) (64.20) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.56 1,534.88 1,539.44 1,099.59
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2022 2.79 306.53 309.32 -
Amortization expense (refer note 26) 0.53 226.13 226.66 -
Disposals / adjustments - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.32 532.66 535.98 =
Amortization expense (refer note 26) 0.36 367.41 367.77 -
Disposals / adjustments - (61.12) (61.12) -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3.68 838.95 842.63 -
As at March 31, 2024 0.88 695.93 696.81 1,099.59
As at March 31, 2023 1.24 B45.94 847.18 363.32
Intangible asset under development Ageing
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Partiulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Ho;eg;r;:n o Total
i.Project in progress 736.27 363.32 - - 1,099.59
Total 736.27 363.32 = - 1,099.59
As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Partiulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years
i.Praject in progress 363.32 - - - 363.32
Total 363.32 = - - 363.32
Note :
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited

CIN: U74899DL1984PTCO19666

Notes forming part of the c lidated fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets 325.62 89,92
Deferred tax labilities *
Deferrad tax assets(net) 325.62 89.92
Opening On Account of Recognised in Closing balance
Year ended March 31, 2024 Balance Aeatattan Profit 1
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment 45.27 25.79 43.59 114.65
Lease Equalisation Reserve 5.53 3.56 9.09
Provision for doubtful debts 24,31 6.31 30.62
Provision for Gratuity (9.58) 23.46 81.97 95.85
Provision for leave encashment - % 4.69 4.69
Bonus Pavable = ® 25.43 25.43
Brought Forward lnssess 24.39 32.02 (12.23) 44.18
Other - = 1.11 1.11
89.92 81.27 154.43 325.62
Deferred tax assets (net) 89.92 81.27 154.43 3@_
Opening On Account of Recognised in Closing balance
Yearendac March 01, 2023 Balance Acquisition Profit or loss
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Property, plant and eauinment 103.81 - (58.54) 45.27
Lease Egualisation Reserve = = 5.53 5.53
Provision for doubtful debts = = 24.31 24.31
Provision for Gratuity (5.60) = (3.98) (9.58)
Brouaht Forward lossess 26.91 - (2.52) 24.39
125.12 - (35.20) 89.92
Deferred tax assets (net) 125.12 - [2;.20} 89.92
As at As at
March 31, 20249 March 31, 2023
13 Long-term loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 550.76 5.55
§50.76 5.55
As at As at
Mar 2024 Mar 2
14 Other assets
Non Current
Balance with government authorities (paid under protest) 176.74 -
Deposit with bank with eriginal maturity of more than 12 months 3,885.84 3,727.72
{see note (3) below)
Security Deposit (see note (b) below) 314.52 106.20
Income tax assel (net of provisions) 705.97 1,252.71
Prepaid Expenses 29.35 -
5114.42 5,086.63
Current
Deposit with bank with original maturity of more than 3 months but remaining
maturity of less than 12 months (see note (c) below) 13,386.30 8,437.59
Prepaid Expenses 259.57 54.96
Security Deposits 578.52 290.12
Balance with oovernment authority 2,572.28 1,867.26
Unbilled Revenue 124.74 -
Other receivable B5.87 105.11
17, .28 10‘755.04

Note:

a. It includes interest accrued of INR 156.03 lacs and INR 87.55 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 respectively,
b. It includes interest accrued of INR 5.83 lacs and INR 0.08 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 respactively,

¢. It includes interest accrued of INR 507.82 lacs and INR 230.99 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and as at March 31, 2023 respectively.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All ar are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As ot As at
15 Inventories
Stock in trade
=In hand 40.72 -
40.72 =
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
16 Trade receivables
Unsarured, ronsidarad good 32,682.51 15,522.50
Unsecured, considered doubtful 121,64 98.91
32,804.15 15,621.41
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (121.64) {96.58
Total Trade receivables 32,682.51 15 524.55)_
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Not Due o for gp from due date of Receipts Total
Less than b 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than
months - 1 year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade 21,077.69 10,363.33 204.32 144,00 0.77 31,790.10
receivables - considered good
(i} Undisputed Trade = = = - 1.89 1.89
Receivables - considered
doubtful
(iii} Disputed Trade % E - 792.99 100.41 893.40
Receivables-considered good
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables 19.18 99.58 118.76
- considered doubtful
Less: Provision for deubtful - - - - {21.07) (100.57) (121.64)
receivable [(Disputed +
Undisputed)
21,077.69 10,363.33 204.32 144.00 793.76 99.42 32,682.51
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Not Due utstanding for following periods from due date of Recei Total
Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than
months - 1 year years years 3 years
(1) Undisputed Trade 12,540.14 1,939.85 150.41 39.24 7.19 16.57 14,693.40
receivables - considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade - - - -
Recelvables - considerad
doubtful
(1ii) Disputed Trade £ - - 828.11 0.99 - 829.10
Receivables-considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - & - 2.33 52,28 44.30 98.91
- considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful - - - - (52.28) (44.30) (96.58)
receivahle (Disputed +
Undisouted)
12,540.14 1,939.85 15_0«41 B69.68 8.18 16.57 15,524.83
Movament in provision for doubtful debts
As at As at
March 31, 2024 Ma 1
Balance as at the beginning of the yvear 96.58 -
Provision recognised during the year 25.06 96.58
Provision utilised during the year . %
Balance as at the end of the year 121.64 26,58
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CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
17 Cash & cash equivalents
Balances with banks
-Current Account 1,245.49 2,280.50
-Overdraft Account 1,096.27 556.81
Cash in hand (including Imprest) 60.71 47.38
Deposit with bank with original matuity of less than 3 months
(see note (a) below) 4,612.63 2,595.70
7,015.10 5,480.30
Note:
a. It includes interest accrued of INR 181.86 lacs and INR 36.11 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023
respectively.
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

18 Short term loans and advance

Unsecured, considered good

Loan to employees (see note (a) below) 49.77 71.05
Advance to employees 44.52 -
Advance to Vendors 607.74 347.73

702.03 418.78
Note:

a. It includes interest accrued of INR 4.16 lacs and INR 4.69 lacs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023
respectively.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
19 Revenue from operations
Sale of Services 1,28,908.27 1,48,468.48
Sale of Products 2.74 -
1!28!911.01 1,48,468.48
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
20 Other Income
Interest income earned on
- Term deposit with banks and NBFC's 1,336.67 710.34
- Income tax refund 91.79 5.72
- Loan to employees 4.21 4.70
- security deposit 0.11 0.09
- Others 0.30 1.35
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 19.48 0.21
Net gain on sale of investment in mutual funds 7.95 -
Net gain on sale of investment in subsidiaries 511.89 -
Net gain on foreign exchange fluctuation 84.56 202.08
Liabilities written back 327.83 200.68
Rent Received form Subletting Property 2.27 31.21
Others 198.02 40.81
2,585.08 1,197.19
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
21 Cost of services rendered
Purchase of Services 1,13,725.85 1,31,660.10
1,13,725.85 1,31,660.10
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
22 Purchase of stock in trade
Purchase of stock in trade 1.93 -
1.93 o
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

23

24

25

26

Changes in inventories of stock in trade

Opening Stock/Stock as on Acquisition Date:

Stock in trade
a. In hand

Closing Stock:
Stock in trade
a. In hand

Net decrease/(increase)

Emplyee benefit expenses

Salary, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (refer note 31)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on borrowings

Interest on delayed deposit of direct tax
Interest on delyed deposit of indirect tax
Other finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

40.82

40.82

40.72

40.72

0.10

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

5,982.67 5,606.13
153.52 119.13
190.71 93,51
349.25 289.40
6,676.15 6,108.17

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,760.61 1,114.40
10.27 5.89
12.98 1.38
36.91 0.01
1,820.77 1,121.68
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

792.93 446.66
367.77 226.66
1,160.70 673.32
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

27 Other Expenses

Power and fuel
Rent
Repair and maintenance

- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Postage and courier
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Commission and brokerage

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 40)

Donation

Legal and professional charges

Payments to auditors (refer note below)
Training and recruitment expenses
Advertising and sales promotion expenses
Security expenses

Bank charges

Provision for doubtful debts

Vehicle running and maintenance
Membership fees & Subscription

Porperty, plant and equipment written off
Trade and other receivables written off
Miscellaneous expenses

Note

1. Payment to auditor
Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees
Reimbursement of expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

119.47 100.70
642.93 566.84
272.95 174.40
89.84 129.13
202.96 492.27
64.70 49.19
14.02 12.61
693.77 714.26
107.40 96.29
8.39 2.17
106.50 76.95
15.99 60.96
534.12 615.26
37.50 10.00
134.53 149.07
214.42 429.98
41,64 30.47
115.03 206.61
25.06 96.58
105.47 69.86
53.45 62.09
16.21 -
61.18 7.93
200.14 216.56
3,877.67 4,370.18
31.40 8.00
5.40 2.00
0.70 -
37.50 10.00
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28

A,

(i
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(i)

(v}

v,

(wi)

(wii)

{wiii)

(ix]

29

A

0

30

31

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contingent lities and ments (to the extent not provided for)
Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts
(i) Income tax demands on various matters (paid under protest INR 95.93 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 95.93 9593
95,93 lacs) )
(i Goods and Service Tax (paid under protest INR 1 78.74 Jack (March31,2023: INR Nil) 3.650.35 -
As at As at
2024 M 1, 202
Commitments
(i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for are: 4,157.31 2,246.00
Undrawn committed borrowing fadility

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from HDFC Bank amounting to TNR 4,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,000.00 lacs). This loan s secured by way of first pari passu
charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 35% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun
Sharma. An amount of INR 1,432.43 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,819.81 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from Axis Bank amounting to INR 9,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 5,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first pari passu
charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 35% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun
Sharma. An amount of INR 2,156.99 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 2,429 B1 |lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from IDFC Bank amounting to INR 3,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first pari passu
charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Fixed Deposit of INR 570.00 lacs along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr,
Tarun Sharma. An amount of INR 3,000.00 lacs {March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end,

The Holding Company has availed warking capital faciiity from Indusind Bank amounting to INR 2,900.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,800.00 lacs), This loan is secured by way of first pari passu
charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 35% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr, Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun
Sharma. An amount of INR Nil (March 31, 2023: INR 1,620.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank amounting to INR 3,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first pan
passu charge on current assets including book debls both present and future, Cash Collateral of 25% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma. An amount of
INR 475,03 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 600.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from Standard Chartered Bank amounting to INR 3,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,800.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first
pari passu charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Fixed Deposit of INR 10,460.00 lacs along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma , Mrs. Bharti
Sharma, Mr, Yashpal Sharma and Mr, Tarun Sharma. An amount of INR 2,086.48 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,800.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Haolding Company has availed working capital facility from Yes Bank amounting to INR 3,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first pari passu charge
on current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 35% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr, Tarun Sharma. An
amount of INR 200.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 200.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from CITI Bank amounting to INR 2,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first pari passu
charge on current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 35% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun
Sharma. An amount of INR 2,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 3,000.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Holding Company has availed working capital facility from SBM Bank amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2023: INR 2,000.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of first parl passu charge on
current assets including book debts both present and future, Cash Collateral of 30% along with personal guarantee of Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma. An amount of INR Nil (March 31,
2023: INR 2,000.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end,

The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
Segment Reporting

Basis for segmentation

The oparations of the group are imited to one segment viz. Logistic Services, which as per AS - 17 "Segment Reporting” is considered the only reportable segment.
Geographic Segment

The Group operates in multiple countries and does not have any separate identifiable gecgraphic segment,

Major Customer

No sinale customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024,

Earning Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year, Diluted earnings per equity share has
been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Prafit attributable to equity holders of the parent INR Lacs 2,736,93 3,770.48
‘Weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the year Numbers 1,04,36,480 1,04,36,480
Nominal valua of equity share INR 10 10
Basic earnings per share INR 26.22 36.13
Diluted earnings per share INR 26.22 36.13
Note:

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the holding company has split its equity share capital from Face value of INR 100 per share to face value of INR 10 per share vide shareholders' approval at
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on June 26, 2023.

Employee Benefits
The Group participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held (where funded) in separately administered funds.

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the statement of profit or loss is the total of contributions payable in the year,

Defined contribution plan
The Group makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Group’s contribution to

the Employees Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund C. issioner. Under the scheme, tha Group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme ta fund the benefits.

During the year, the Group has recognised INR 147,15 Lacs (Previous year INR 117.11 Lacs) for Employer’s contributions to the Provident Fund and INR 7.89 Lacs (Previous year INR 11,95 Lacs)
for Employee State Insurance Scheme contribution in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to the plan by the Group is at the rate specified in rules to the scheme.
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m

(i}

Defined benefit plan

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e. last drawn basic salary) for

each completed year of service subject to compietion of five years service,

Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks, These risks are:- (i) Interest risk (discount rate risk), (i) mortality risk and (iii) salary risk.

Interest | A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.
risk

Mortality | The present value of the defined benefit plan liabllity is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured|

risk Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate table.

A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's llability.

Salary The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in
risk future for plan participants from the rate of increase In salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent acturial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2024 by Charan Gupta
Consultants Private Limited, The present value of defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

Statement of profit and loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in employee cost:

Current service cost

Interest cost on benefit oblination
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial (gain) / loss

Net benefit expense

Balance Sheet
Benefit Asset / Liability

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Funded status/difference

Plan {liability)

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Arquisitinn adjustment
=1In
= Out
Benefits paid
= directly paid by the enterprise
Actuarial {gain} / loss
Closing defined benefit obligation

Funded Unfunded
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
43,35 45.62 53.14 22.93
27.68 24.00 10.54 6.24
(21.29) (22.70) - -
37.55 24.96 39.74 (7.54)
87.29 71.88 103.42 21.63
Funded Unfun
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
379.34 376.06 323.25 90.00
310.77 304.18 - -
(68.57) (71.88) (323.25) (90.00)
(68.57) {71.88) (323.25) ___{90.00)
Funded Unfunded
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
376.06 334.23 50.00 86.97
43.35 45.62 53.14 2293
27.68 24,00 10.54 B6.24
0.08 157.74 -
{54.69) (0.08}) -
(51.47) (50.84) (27.83) (18.60}
38.33 23.05 39.74 (7.54)
379.34 376.06 323.25 90.00
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{iv) Change in fair value of plan assets are as follows: Funded Unfunded
As at As at As at Ag at
March M. 1, 202 2024  March
Opening fair value of plan assets 304.18 32331 - -
Actual return 22.13 21.30 - *
FMC Charges (0.07) (0.50) £ *
Contributions by employer 36.00 10.91 - -
Benefits paid (51.47) (50.84) > =
Actuarial gain / (loss) =
Closing fair value of plan assets 310.77 304.18 - -
The group is expected to contribute INR 161.00 lacs to gratuity fund in the next year.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:
As at As at
4 M. 31 2
Investments with insurer 100% 100%

The averall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled,

(v) The
Refer Note Below Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Discount rate 1 7.22%-7.25% 7.36%-7.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.85% 7.00%
Increase in compensation cost 2 5%-6% 5%-6%
No
tes
1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated Lerm of obligations.
2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
(vi) Demographic assumptions:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Retirame 58-60 Years 58-60 Years
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14)  IALM (2012-14)
Average O ling service of Emplovee upto retirement 23.02 years 19.82 years
No of Employees 927 715
Attrition rate !
Upto 30 vears 3%-5% 3%-5%
from 31 to 44 years 2%-3% 2%-3%
Above 44 years 1%-2% 1%-2%

(wii)

on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Discount Rate (-/+0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)
Salary Growth Rate (-/+0.5%) (% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

Sensitivity analvsis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
33.59 {30.77) 25.34 {23.21)
(26.52) 28.78 (19.94) 21.55
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32 Related party transactions

A. Related Parties with whom transaction have taken place during the year

Subsidiaries

Associates

Key Managerial Person (KMP)

Relative of KMP

Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control

Skyways SLS Loaistik GMBH

Surgeport Logistics Private Limited

Phantom Express Private Limited

SLS Logistik Academy Private Lmited

Skart Global Express Private Limited

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited

Brace Port Logistics Private Limited

Forin Container Line Private Limited

Skyways SLS Logistik Private Limited

Hubload SLS Services Private Limited

Morthport Logistics Private Limited

Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC (Dubai-UAE)
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)

SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited

Rahat Continental Private Limited

RIV Worldwide Limited

Bolt Freight INC (Trade Name: RIV Worldwide INC)

Skyways SLS Frugal BD Private Limited (Bangladesh)

Sudershan Lal Sharma (Chairman)

Yashpal Sharma (Managing Director)

Tarun Sharma (Whole Time Director)

Himanshu Chhabra (Director Finance and Company Secretary)
Rohit Sehgal (Director)

Rajiv Gul Hariramani (Whole Time Director w.e.f. 07.12.22)

Vinod Sharma
Sharad Sharma
Bharti Sharma
Ramesh Bhaglal
Prerna Sharma
Pratishtha Sharma
Deepa Khosla
Shruti Chhabra
Brinda Sehgal
Hema Hariramani
Kabir Sehgal (HUF)
Rajiv Gul Hariramani (HUF)
Akshita Sehgal

Lata Gul Hariramani

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB)
Z1V Hotels Private Limited
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTCO19666

Notes forming part of the

ed financial stat

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

for the year ended March 31, 2024

36 Disclosure of interest in Subsidiaries and Minority Interest

a) The Group consists of a pa

b

—

operates in India and outside India.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting pericd are as follows:

rent Company, Skyways Air Services Private Limited, incorporated in India and a number of subsidiaries held directly by the Group which

Name of the Subsidiary Principal Activity Country of Proportion of Ownership Interest
incorporation and Voting power held by the
Group
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH Integrated Logistic Solutions Germany 100.00% 100.00%
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 76.00% 76.00%
Phantern Express Private Limited Transportation Services India 100.00% 100.00%
SLS Logistik Academy Private Lmited Logistic Education Services India 80.00% B0.00%
Skart Global Express Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 98.00% 98.00%
Skyways 5LS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam) Integrated Lagistic Solutions vietnam 70.00% 70.00%
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited IT Solution Services India 51.00% 51.00%
Brace Port Logistics Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 69.99% 76.00%
Forin Container Line Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 91.44% 100.00%
Skyways SLS Logistik Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 100.00% 100.00%
Hubload SLS Services Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 100.00% 98.00%
Morthport Logistics Private Limitad Integrated Logistic Solutions India 100.00% 100.00%
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC (Dubai-UAE) Integrated Logistic Solutions Dubai-UAE 90.00% 90.00%
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Heng Kong) Integrated Logistic Solutions Hong Kong B0.00% 80.00%
Rahat Continental Private Limited Integrated Logistic Solutions India 51.00% 0.00%
Bolt Freight INC (Trade Name: RIV Worldwide INC) Integrated Logistic Solutions United States of 51.00% 0.00%
America

RIV Worldwide Limited Integrated Loqistic Soluticns uUnited Kingdom 51.00% 0.00%
SLS Retall Supermart Private Limited Digital Marketing, E- India 90.00% 0.00%

commerce Retail and Interior
Designing

Details of Non-Wholly Owned Subsidiaries that have material Minority Interest

Following are the details of the Minority interests that are material to the Group as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023:-

Name of the Subsidiary

Principal place of
business

Proportion of Ownership Interest and voting
rights held by non controlling interests

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Surgepart Logistics Private Limited India 24.00% 24.00%
5SLS Logistik Academy Private Lmited india 20.00% 20.00%
Skart Global Express Private Limited India 2.00% 2.00%
Skyways 5LS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam) Vietnam 30.00% 30.00%
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited India 49.00% 49.00%
Brace Port Legistics Limited India 30.01% 24.00%
Hubload SLS Services Private Limited India 0.00% 2.00%
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC (Dubai-UAE) Dubai-UAE 10.00% 10.00%
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 20.00% 20.00%
Forin Container Line Private Limited India 8.56% 0.00%
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Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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3B

39

40

Leases
i

The Group has also taken office premises under operating lease agreements, These are cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed
terms, The lease payment recognized in the statement of profit and loss account for the year is INR 642.93 lacs (previous yaar: INR 566.84 lacs), Below is the

disclosure of future minimum lease payments.

‘Within one year
After one year but not more than three years
More than three years

Foreign Excl R & Expenditures

Revenue in foreign currency

Sale of Services

Expenditures in foraign currency

Purchase of Services

Membership fees & Subscription
Travelling and conveyance
Training and recruitment expenses
Legal and professional charges
Insurance

Repair and maintenance - Other
Miscellaneous expenses
Advertising and sales promaotion expenses
Staff Weltare Expense

IT Expenses

Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

1. Assets
Trade Receivable

II. Liabilities
Trade Payable

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Year ended Year ended
260.70 172.01
538.37 365.82
154.88 211.72
953.95 749.55

Amount in INR

Year ended Year ended
M h 2024 a r
21,672.99 31,B01.56
21,672.99 31,801.56
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,466.29 19,375.18
23.30 39.43
55.13 64.88
67.54 55.21
4.66 -
26.65 -
8.65 7.21
. 0.30
14.98 3.88
- 0.01
24.26 19.46
7,691.46 19,565.57

Amount in INR

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7,458.17 3,511.22
1,620.12 1,295.00

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceding three financial years
towards the Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR”). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the

Companies Act, 2013. Details are as under:

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Details of CSR Expenditure:

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act (including CSR

expenditure relating to previous years unspent amount)
Amount aporoved by the Board to be spent durina the vear

Amount spent during the vear on :
(i} Construction/ acquisition of assets
(ii} On purpose other than above

Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i} Contribution to Public Trust

(i} Contribution to Charitable Trust

(i1} Unspent amount in relation to;

- Onaacing project

- Other than onaoing project

Total amount spent
Less: Excess spent during the vear to be carry forward to next year
Total tr ised in the stat t of profit and loss

106.17 76.95

106.17 76.95

106.50 76.95

106.50 76.95
106.50 76.95
106.50 7695




Skyways Air Services Private Limited
CIN: U74899DL1984PTC019666
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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Latest Audited Financial Statement of Associate "Skyways SLS Frugal BD Private Limited”, i.e., June-23 has been used for the Consolidation purpose,

Other Information
(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be regi d with ROC beyend the statutory period,
(ii) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(iii) The Group have not advanced or Inaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)fitovide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(iv) The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(v) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(vi) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(vil) The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group,

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated in India and whose Financial Statements have been audited under the Act have complied with the
requirements of audit trail except the Following :-

- In respect of Holding Company and 12 of the Subsidiary companies audit trall feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain privileged
access rights and also for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access right.

The Holding Company has establiched a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legisiation under
Sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the
Holding Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the transactions coverad under transfer pricing regulations entered into with the associated
enterprises during the period and expects such records ta be in existence latest by such date as required under the law. The management of the Holding Company
Is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm'’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements,
particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation,

Previous Year Figures have been reqrouped/ reclassified to make them comparable with the current year classification,
As per our report of even date
For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co. For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Skyways Air Services Private Limited
ICAI FirmyReq. no. OD7B95N

per Mohit Gupta Yashpal Sharma Tarun Sharma
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership'No. 528337 DIN - 00520359 DIN - 06501856

Place: New Delhi Place:New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024 Date: September 28, 2024
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS e-mail : bbgcaaccounts@gmail.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of SKYWAYS AIR SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of SKYWAYS AIR SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates comprising of
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and the Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, their consolidated profit and their consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements’
section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the Consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.




RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of their respective companies and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of
their respective companies to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The resbective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company
and its associate incorporated in India has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,




d)

e)

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates of which we are the
independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the Consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

OTHER MATTERS

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 2
foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of INR 1,177.43 lacs as
at March 31, 2024, and total revenues of INR 1,998.69 lacs and net cash outflows of INR
12.15 lacs for the year ended on that date.

These subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally
accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company'’s
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside
India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion
adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates
to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report
of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the
Holding Company and audited by us.

(b) The accompanying consolidated financial statements include unaudited financial statements
and other unaudited financial information in respect of 4 foreign subsidiaries, whose financial
statements and other financial information reflect total assets of INR 4,707.62 lacs as at
March 31, 2024, and total revenues of INR 7,843.08 lacs and net cash outflows of INR 51.51
lacs for the year ended on that date. These unaudited financial statements and other
unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion,
in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and
our report in terms of sub-sections (2) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the




aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and other
unaudited financial information.

(c) The accompanying consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net
profit of INR 7.90 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of 1 foreign associate, whose financial statements, other
financial information have been audited by other auditors in their respective country and
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, The Holding Company’s
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside
India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on
the reports of such other auditors. Also, latest Audited Financial Statement of Associate
"Skyways SLS Frugal BD Private Limited", i.e., June 30, 2023 has been used for the
Consolidation purpose.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies and

associate companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We / other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of the other auditors, except that with respect to certain subsidiary incorporated
in India as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, the back-up of books of
account was not kept on daily basis in servers physically located in India and for the matters stated
in the paragraph (h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

e) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under section 139 of the Act, of its associate,
none of the directors of the Group's companies and its associates, is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.




f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies,
incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report

in "Annexure 2" to this report.

g) In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act and rules
made thereunder are not applicable to the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates
incorporated in India.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates in its consolidated financial
statements - Refer note 28A to the consolidated financial statements;

(i) The Group and its associates does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates,
incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2024;

(iv) a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate
which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, has represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associates that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Holding company or any of such subsidiaries and associates to or in any other
persons or entities, including entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of
such subsidiaries and associates (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

bh) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates
which are companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, has represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associates that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Holding company or any of such subsidiaries and associates from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding company or any of such
subsidiaries and associates shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the other
auditors of its subsidiaries and associates which are companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to
our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the representations made under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material
mis-statements.




(v) The dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year, is in accordance with section
123 of the Act, as applicable. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by its
subsidiaries and associate companies, incorporated in India.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries and associates which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, except for the instances diccussed in note 54 to the
financial statements, the Holding Company, subsidiaries and associates have used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditors of the above referred
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered in respect of accounting software except for instances as stated in the above note.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 007895N

e

per Mohit Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 528337 =

UDIN: D4 520337 Bk DGITH4L€E5

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024



“Annexure 1” referred to in paragraph under the heading “"Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Skyways Air Services Private Limited ('the Company’)

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements

are;

S. Name CIN Holding Clause
No. company/ number of
subsidiary/ the CARO
associate report
which is
qualified or
is adverse
1 Skyways Air Services | U74899DL1984PTC019666 Holding i(c), vii(b)
Private Limited Company
2. Forin Container Line U63000DL2021PTC377266 Subsidiary Xi(a)
Private Limited

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No. 007895N

Lot

per Mohit dupta
Partner
Membership Number; 528337

WPIN: 2452£337 BADGITH 4 ¢c 5

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 28, 2024




Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Skyways Air Services Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Skyways Air Services Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates, which
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial




statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, have,
maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.
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